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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

SUMMARY OF CHANGES  

SECTION A - SOLICITATION/CONTRACT FORM 

A.  Responses to potential offerors' questions received after the release of amendment 0002 are depicted below:

1.  C-1 SOW, p. 36, para 2.0 - narrative refers to Sections 2.1-2.12; however, there is no 2.12 in the RFP.  Is this a typo or is 2.12 missing?

Answer: There is no Section 2.12.  Under Section 2.0 “REQUIREMENTS/ADMINISTRATION”, Sections 2.1 through 2.11 are the requirements/administrative sections applicable to all task described under Section 3.0 “TASKS 1 – Assessments of DoD Financial Management Systems” and Section 4.0 “TASKS 2 – Audit Assessment and CFO Audits.

2.  L-1 Proposal Instructions, p.159, para l. - Section 1-B indicates B-1 Pricing of Time and Material Rates for Labor Categories should be included here in Volume I.  Section L-2.b appears to confirm this.  We assume, based on answers to previous questions, that B-1 refers to Table B-1(1)(a) shown on pp. 165-167.  If so, paragraph "p." of this section on page 160 indicates cost/price information is limited to Volume III, the Cost/Price Proposal.  It is not clear if fully burdened fixed hourly rates should be entered in both places or only in Volume III along with Section J Attachment 1.  Please clarify.

Answer:  Table I refers to Table B-1(1)(a) which is to be submitted with Volume I “Offeror  Information”.  Attachment (1) “Hourly Rate Table” is to be submitted with Volume III “Price/Cost Information”.
3.  L-3 Past Performance, p. 164, para c (3) , Discusses the supportive narrative that describes success/failure with subcontractors.  The wording could be interpreted as one not to exceed 2-page narrative for each subcontractor narrative or one not two exceed 2-page narrative that covers all previous experience with all subcontractors on a team.  Please indicate which interpretation is correct.
Answer:  The supportive narrative page limit that describes the role, if any, that subcontractors have played in contributing toward your success and/or failures in regards to Past Performance is hereby revised.  The supportive narrative for all previous experience shall not exceed one page for each subcontractor on a team.

4. Can the Offeror assume that past performance references and questionnaires should be limited to those subcontractors that meet the section K thresholds or that are “critical” to the performance of the contract efforts as stated in the SOW?

Answer:  Offerors are responsible for selecting and identifying past performance references.  

5.  Is it the Government’s intention to continue to require 5 years or will the solicitation be amended to reflect 3 years as stated in the questions.

Answer:  Per Amendment 0002 issued on 02 September 2004, Statement of Work Section 2.6 INDEPENDENCE/QUALITY CONTROL ASSURANCE was revised to allow offerors to identify “any existing, ongoing, or planned non-audit services in the past 3-5 years related to the specific component or Agency, financial management system, or line item identified in the task order.” 

6.  Is the requirement for US citizenship valid and will the Government issue an amendment clarifying the requirement?  


Answer:  Clause H-2 “SECURITY REQUIREMENTS” is revised as follows:

H-2
SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

(a)
All classified task orders will require a facility security clearance issued by the Defense Security Service (DSS).  

(b)
Contractor personnel shall be required to have a security clearance at the level required for each specific task order, i.e., Confidential, Secret, or Top Secret.

(c)
The security classification and guidance of classified task orders will be specified in the Contract Security Classification Specification DD Form 254, to be provided when required at task order level.  

(d)
Unclassified task orders do not require a facility security clearance issued by DSS, nor a DD Form 254.  

7.  Can the RFP be amended to reflect that the Small Business Subcontracting Plan prepared in accordance with FAR 19.702(b) is not part of the 20-page limit?

Answer:  The Small Business Subcontracting Plan and Small Business Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy (not including graphs, charts and or diagrams) are not to be included in the Management proposal (Volume II).  The Small Business Subcontracting Plan and Small Business Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy should be included as Appendix (1).  Large Businesses should entitle Appendix (1) "Small Business Subcontracting Plan and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy".  Small Businesses should entitle Appendix (1) "Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy".
As a part of Appendix (1), the Small Business Subcontracting Plan and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy will not be counted toward the page limitation for the management proposal in Volume II.

8.  What process will the government use to determine how each SOW will be competed and, therefore, ensure fair opportunity?

Answer:  To the maximum extent practicable, all awardees shall be provided a fair opportunity to be considered.  Prior to soliciting task order proposals, the Statement of Work (SOW) will be sent to all awardees (electronically/faxed) with a request to respond within 48 hours of their intent to submit or not submit a proposal.  Offerors intending to submit a proposal should submit a brief response with technical capabilities and an estimated price.  Responses will be sent to the Procuring Contracting Officer (PCO).  If the Contracting Officer receives reasonable assurance that two (2) or more HUBZone, 8(a) or SDVOSB companies will submit a proposal, then the work will be reserved for Lot I -  HUBZone, 8(a) and SDVOSB companies and the RFP will not be opened to awardees in Lot II or Lot III.  If it appears that only one HUBZone, 8(a) or SDVOSB Company will propose, then the RFP will be open to those awardees in Lot II – Small Business. If it appears that only one or no Small businesses will propose, then the RFP will be open to those awardees in Lot III.  The Government may unilaterally compete a specific task order requirement among contractors within a specified Lot without utilizing the cascading provision of the contract if the OIG DoD, the NAVAIR Small Business Office and the PCO agree, after a detailed review of the specific task order requirement, that the specific task order requirement should be competed solely among the contractors of a given Lot.  

For Lots I and II only.  The intent for the Lot I and II lot structure is to increase participation of small business, 8(a), HUBZone and Small Disabled Veteran Owned Small Businesses.  In order to insure that the prime contractors in Lots I and II are performing meaningful portions of the required effort, prime contractors shall be required to perform at least twenty-five to forty percent of the proposed effort specified in each task order awarded to that Prime.  The percentage of work actually performed by the Prime in a task order will be an evaluation factor in subsequent task order competitions in Lots I and II.  For example, a Prime that actually performs forty percent of the work will be rated higher for this evaluation factor than a Prime that actually performs twenty-five percent of the work.  Similarly, a Prime that actually performs greater than forty percent of the work will be rated higher for this evaluation factor than a Prime that actually performs forty percent of the work.  Failure to meet the mandatory minimum of twenty-five percent may impact the receipt of future awards.

9. Under Section C, what is the anticipated level of effort for the required training for each anticipated task order? (pg.36)

Answer: At this time, the Government does not have the anticipated level of effort of required training.  Training requirements will be specified at the task order level.

10.   Under Section C, Article 2.3, Security, all personnel are required to be U.S. Citizens (pg.37); however, Article H-9, Foreign Participation, (pg.74) authorizes the usage of foreign firms. Are foreign firms required to provide all U.S. Citizens too?

Answer:  U.S. citizenship is required for contract and task order performance.

11.  Under Section F,-2, Period of Performance, how long may orders extend beyond the overall ordering period? (pg.61)

Answer:  If the question is what is the anticipated period of performance after the issuance of a task order, then the response is the period of performance will vary depending on the specific effort identified in each task order.  

In the event, the Government requires continued performance of a service performed under a given task order.  The total extension of performance shall not exceed six months, in accordance with FAR 52.217-8, Option to Extend Services clause.

12. Please confirm that at the NAICS Code for this solicitation is 541211.

Answer:  The NAICS code for the entire procurement is 541211.

13.  Please clarify the small business reporting requirements. It states that "subcontractors shall submit SF-294 and Sf-295." In our experience, the prime contractor submits these reports based upon its utilization of small businesses. Please clarify the requirement. (pg.73)

Answer:  FAR 52.219-9(d)(10)(iv) requires that an offeror’s subcontracting plan assure that its subcontractors agree to submit and SF-294 “Subcontracting Report for Individual Contracts” and SF-295 “Summary Subcontract Report”.  The information received from subcontractors should be incorporated in the prime Small Business Plan.

14.   Under Section L, Offerors are advised that "the same proposal may be used for multiple lots" (pg.157); however, on page 159 Offerors are advised that they "may only submit one proposal as a prime contractor per lot."  Is it the government's intent to permit Prime Contractors to submit the same proposal for more than one Lot; however, alternative proposals for the same Lot are not permitted? 

Answer:  Offerors are allowed to submit one proposal for multiple lots. However, offerors should indicate which lot or lots they are proposing.  Alternate proposals should not be submitted. 

15. In accordance with L-2, should Offerors leave the travel CLIN blank in Schedule B? (pg.160)

Answer:  Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLINs specified in Section B.

16.   Can the government provide a template for the Small Business Plan which includes the Strategy? (pg.163) In our experience, a standard Small Business Plan would also address much of the Small Disadvantaged Business items provided in the RFP. Also, page 175 of the RFP seems to suggest that the latter should be included in the Plan.

Answer: The Government does not have a template for Small Business Plan or Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy.  The Small Business Subcontracting Plan applies ONLY to Large Businesses.  The Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) Subcontracting Strategy applies to BOTH Large and Small Businesses.
17.  If I understand the solicitation correctly, in order for an SDVOSB to be eligible for all parts of  the LOT I bid award it must /or should have a licensed CPA on staff, or must it have a Licensed CPA firm as a teaming partner?

A review of the Yellow Book Para 3.44 states that Auditors engaged to perform financial Audits or Attestation engagements should be licensed Certified Public Accounts or persons working for a licensed CPA firm or Government organization In accordance with this requirement, all financial audits and attestation engagements performed by this firm will be supervised by a licensed CPA who can if required, issue an opinion on the work performed; which leads to the following questions.

If an SDVOSB bids on Lot I and has on staff a licensed CPA, can that CPA opine as an individual when necessary or is the requirement that you must use a teaming partner that is a  licensed "FIRM"; versus a licensed and certified CPA individual?

Answer: The Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO Audits” work is only open to prime contractors that are IPA firms.  Non-IPA firms with individual CPAs are not eligible to be the prime contractor for the work under Task 2. 

18.  Will either of these scenarios allow the SDVOSB to be eligible for all Lot I bid work?

Answer:  The two scenarios do not allow an SDVOSB that is a non-IPA firm to be eligible for all the Lot I work.  See our response to question 17.

19.  Are Small Disadvantaged Business, Veteran owned and 8(a) certified required to include a “Small Disadvantaged Business Strategy” in our proposal as indicated in Section L-3.b.3?

Answer: An 8(a) firm is certified as SDB concern.  Therefore, 8(a) firms are not required to submit the SDB Subcontracting Strategy.  Small Disadvantaged Veteran Owned Small Businesses are required to submit Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) Subcontracting Strategy. 

20.  The answer to question 81 of the "Presolicitation Questions" states, "Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLINs specified in Section B. Further, offerors are instructed not to insert a maximum contract value. The Government will insert required Section B information." However, the instructions for Volume I in Section L-2 state to include "RFP Section B, "Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs" with the direct labor rates and any applicable burdens." This appears to be contradictory - please clarify if offerors are supposed to insert anything in Section B, and if so, what?

Answer:  Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLIN specified in Section B.  Further, offerors are instructed not to insert a maximum contract value.  The Government will insert required Section B information.  Offerors are to complete Table B-1(1)(a) which is to be submitted with Volume I “Offeror  Information”.  In addition,  all offerors are to complete Attachment (1) “Hourly Rate Table” which is to be submitted in Volume III “Price/Cost Information”.  The Time and Material direct labor rates and applicable burdens will be used for evaluation purposes, for the establishment of Time and Material (T&M) ceiling rates, and for the issuance of T&M task orders.  

21.  An inconsistency exists in the solicitation regarding whether Non-CPA firms may prime Lots I and II.  Specifically, NAICS Code 541211 applies to CPA firms only. However, responses received in response to “Solicitation Questions”, which is provided on the website, suggest that Non-CPA firms may prime Lots I and II.  Please advise as to whether Non-CPA Firms may prime Lots I and II. If yes, what additional NAICS Code(s) will be added in order to permit IT firms which are a HUBZONE, 8(a), or SBVOSB to compete prime contractors in response to the solicitation?

Answer:  Non-CPA firms may be the prime under Lots I and II.  Under Task 1 “Assessment of DoD Financial Management Systems”, bids may be placed by IT companies.  Task 2 “Audit Assessment and CFO Audits”, is for the CFO related audits, which is only open to IPA firms.  The Government does not intend to add an additional NAICS code(s).  

22.  In order to meet the 23% small business goal, must the small business qualify as a small business under NAICS Code 541211? If yes, as the solicitation is currently written, we strongly recommend that additional NAICS Codes be added to the solicitation. More specifically, we request the addition of IT Codes to the solicitation due to the significant amount of IT services that are anticipated as a result of the solicitation. Absent this change, neither the agency nor the prime contractor will receive “credit” for using non-CPA firms during performance and, thus, the Small Business Plan, Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Strategy, SF-294s, and SF-295s will not be truly representative of small business representation on the project.

Answer:  The Government does not intend to add an additional NAICS code(s).  In order to be considered a Small Business, a company must not exceed $7M over three (3) years in gross sales receipt, as specified under NAICS 541211.  

23.   In accordance with Section L, Clause 5252.215-9505, EXCLUSIVE TEAMING ARRANGEMENTS WHICH INHIBIT COMPETITION, does the government want copies of teaming agreements, which exists between prime contractors and subcontractors for this effort? (pg.171).  Or does the government want copies of contractor team arrangements (CTAs) between team leaders and team members? As you know, GSA defines the latter approach as an arrangement between two or more GSA Schedule contractors to work together to meet agency requirements. A CTA permits contractors to complement each other's capabilities to compete for orders for which they may not independently qualify. Please clarify.

Answer:  Offerors are to provide a copy of teaming agreements between prime and subcontractors for this procurement.

24.  Is it the Government's intent to require that offerors and their subcontractors identify and provide contact information (e.g., name, telephone number, address, etc.) for the ACO, PCO, and COR (or equivalent title) for each reference listed in the Past Performance Matrix?  

Answer: Prime and subcontractors are to identify and provide contact information in the Past Performance Matrix for each reference to whom a Past Performance questionnaire was forwarded.  In the event, a Past Performance questionnaire is not submitted to the government by a reference, the Government will use the contact information reflected in the matrix to directly contact the reference, on behalf of the offeror.

25.  Would the Government determine that offerors and their subcontractors are responsive and in compliance with the RFP if they identify and provide contact information in the Past Performance Matrix for a single official "who will be able to provide information about your/their performance."  That would likely be the individual to whom we submitted the Past Performance Questionnaire.  Please confirm that the Government would find this approach acceptable.

Answer:  Offerors should ensure that the references reflected in the Past Performance Matrix are identical to the references receiving the Past Performance Questionnaire.  The Past Performance Matrix should list the references in receipt of the Past Performance Questionnaire.  Specifically, three (3) references are required for the prime offeror and one (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.

26.  L-3 c.(2) of the RFP states, "The Past Performance Questionnaire, Attachment (6), is to be submitted to each of the references listed on the Past Performance Matrix.  Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror.  One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor..."  This potential offeror interprets L-3 c.(2) to mean that an offeror's Past Performance Matrix may only list three (3) references for the prime contractor and one (1) reference for each of the prime’s subcontractors, and that the prime contractor and subcontractors would prepare and submit Past Performance Questionnaires for the references listed in the Past Performance Matrix.  Please confirm that our interpretation of this requirement correct.

Answer:  Offerors should ensure that the references reflected in the Past Performance Matrix are identical to the references receiving the Past Performance Questionnaire.  The Past Performance Matrix should list the references in receipt of the Past Performance Questionnaire.  Specifically, three (3) references are required for the prime offeror and one (1) reference is required for each subcontractor.

27.  Please confirm that the Government’s answer to pre-solicitation Question #75 (distributed on August 23, 2004) is in effect for this procurement.

“In accordance with FAR 52.215-20, when cost and pricing data is requested, in lieu of submitting cost or pricing data, offerors may submit a written request for exception by submitting the information described in the subparagraphs of the FAR clause.”

Answer:  In an attempt to streamline the proposal submittal process, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates, and their applicable burdens for evaluation purposes and to establish ceiling rates for the issuance of Time and Material task orders.  These services are not considered commercial.  However, offerors may elect to submit their commercial prices, so long as the rates and applicable burdens are submitted in accordance with Section L.  Lastly, an Offeror may submit written requests for exception to cost and pricing data by submitting the information described in FAR 52.215-20.   
If an offeror does not submit the required Section L information, your proposal may be found unacceptable, and therefore unawardable.  

28.  Please confirm that Offerors shall have the ability to bill and be paid for subcontractor labor at prime contractor proposed composite rates under this Contract. 

Answer:  For Time and Materials task orders, Prime Offerors will be able to bill and be paid for up to the ceiling composite rates specified in the basic contract.  

29. Based upon the guidance previously provided by NAVAIR, our firm has decided to utilize the GSA Schedules as the basis for pricing the time-and-material ceiling rates since we are largely a commercial firm that does not possess a government approved accounting system.  Considering FAR Clause 52.215-20, Requirements for Cost and Pricing Data or Information Other Than Cost or Pricing Data, is included in the solicitation, we consider that the following requirement in Section L does not apply to either prime or subcontractors who propose their GSA Schedules:

“At a minimum, the offeror shall provide: labor categories, rates; overhead; material and subcontracted; general and administrative; and costs.”

Please confirm.

Answer:  We further reiterate this is not a commercial procurement; however, offerors may elect to submit their commercial prices.  Offerors must propose a fully burdened, fixed hourly rate per labor category in the format set forth in Attachment (1) “Fully Burdened Hourly Rate Table.”  In accordance with L-4 under Volume III, the composite rate information must consist of specific rates provided in the format of Attachment (1) “Fully Burdened Fixed Hourly Rate” for each year of performance for the offeror and all subcontractors.

If an offeror does not submit the required Section L information, your proposal may be found unacceptable, and therefore unawardable
30.  We need a clarification on the past performance questionnaires.  Below is the requirement and clarification request.  Thanks in advance for any information you may be able to provide.

"The final RFP indicates the past performance questionnaires are to "be submitted by the proposal due date to Ms. Krista Hayden, 310-757-2628." (Pg 164). In the pre-solicitation Q&A, the government's answer to question #16, pg 6 states in part, "The Past Performance Questionnaire, Attachment 6, is to be submitted to each of the references listed on the Past Performance Matrix. Three (3) references are required for the prime offeror. One (1) reference is required for each subcontractor. Under Attachment (6) "Past Performance Questionnaire", the offeror should submit the original Past Performance Questionnaire with the proposal in Volume II. The offerors should have their references submit a completed copy of the Past Performance Questionnaire via facsimile directly to Krista Hayden by proposal due date." A similar answer is given to questions #26 & #27. While Ms. Hayden is sent a copy directly in both scenarios, can you confirm whether we need to include the original with our team's proposal submission. We would like to confirm that the original Past Performance Questionnaires are still expected to be submitted with the proposal, with a copy sent directly to Ms. Hayden."

Answer:  Once the original Past Performance Questionnaire has been completed by the reference, it should be forwarded directly to Ms. Krista Hayden, either from the reference or from the contractor.     
31.  This is to confirm our telephone conversation today regarding subject solicitation with a NAICS Code of: 541211. According to our conversation it is my understanding that an 8(a) company that doesn’t meet the 541211 Size Standard of $7M cannot bid prime in Lots I and II, but must bid prime in Lot III. Also, respectfully request that this information be included in a Q and A Amendment to the solicitation.

Answer:  Correct.  Companies that exceed the $7M threshold, specified under NAICS 541211, cannot bid as a small business in Lots I and II.  Specifically, companies exceeding the $7M threshold would be considered large businesses and can bid in Lot III.
32.  We are working on our response to the DoD IG Information Assurance and Audit RFP R-0086.  We are a Lot II firm trying to put together sufficient teaming agreements to subcontract to qualified Lot I subcontractors.  What if a  company does not yet have a Federal certification as an 8(a)?  However, the company has started this process, but  SBA estimates it will take 90-120 days.

Is there anyway we can use this firm contingent on them receiving the 8(a) designation prior to doing work on a Task Order?

Answer:  The firm must be 8(a) certified at time of proposal submittal.

33.  Section B:   Does NAVAIR want offerors to provide the T&M rates in Section B in this proposal, or does the NAVAIR intend to use the B-Tables to award task orders?  Does NAVAIR expect large businesses to provide data only under CLINs xxx5 and 4000?

Answer:  Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLINs specified in Section B.  Further, offerors are instructed not to insert a maximum contract value.  The Government will insert required Section B information.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material (T&M) ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.  For L-4(a), the rate information should support the prime offeror’s price proposal.  Prime contractors are to submit the subcontractor’s information with the prime’s proposal.  Separate and or sealed envelopes submitted by the prime on behalf of the subcontractor are acceptable.  Under Attachment (1), offerors are to submit a fully burdened fixed labor rate for all proposed rates (prime and subcontractors) that shows individual cost elements.  If awarded a T&M task order the proposed composite T&M rates reflected in the basic contract will represent the task order ceiling rates for each labor category.

34.  Section B: Does NAVAIR expect to provide B-Tables for Contract Years 2 and 3?

Answer:  Offerors are to submit oneTable B-1(a) for all three Contract Years.  

35.  Section B:  This structure enables the Government to award different CLINs to different firms for one task.  Should offerors assume that all CLINs for a task order will be awarded to the same firm?

Answer:  Yes.  Individual task orders will be issued to one multiple award contract awardee.

36.  Section B:  Does NAVAIR expect pricing data for the Other Direct Cost (ODC) CLINs, or should that be NSP?

Answer:  Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLINs specified in Section B.  Other Direct Costs will be determined at the task order level.

37.  Section B:  CLINs xxx7 state that Business and Financial Data are priced as NSP, and that CLINs xxx9 OPSEC Data are priced as NSP.  We expect that we will be called upon to provide significant management, operational and technical data under future task orders.  Should we assume that all data and reports is NSP?

Answer:  Offerors should not assume that all data and reports will be NSP.  Data and reports will be detailed at the task order level.  OPSEC program will be placed at the first delivery order under this agreement.  
38.  Sections B and L:  Page 202 states that cost information is limited to Volume III, and also states that Section B "with the direct labor rates and any applicable burdens" shall be included in Volume I.  Does the NAVAIR want this cost information in Volume I?  If so, does it want both direct labor and burdens, or does it simply want total prices?

Answer:  The Solicitation has 178 pages, Page 202 does not exist.  Table B-1(1)(a) is to be submitted with Volume I “Offeror  Information”.  Table B-1 (1)(a) should show only one fully burdened rate per labor category. Attachment (1) “Hourly Rate Table” is to be submitted with Volume III “Price/Cost Information”.  Attachment (1) should detail the individual cost elements for each labor category.
39.  Section L-2 Volume 1 b:  Does the NAVAIR want Section B to be inserted with prices in all applicable CLINs?  Or does the NAVAIR want Section B to be used only for task orders? 

Answer:  Offerors are instructed not to insert a proposed amount in any CLINs specified in Section B.  Individual task orders will detail Section B “Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs”.

40.  Section L-2 Volume 1 b:  How does the NAVAIR want offerors to provide "direct labor rates and any applicable burdens" into the Section B tables?

Answer:  Table B-1 (1)(a) should show only one fully burdened rate per labor category, which includes all cost elements used to calculate the labor category fully burdened rate. 

41.  Section L-4:  What is meant by the term "zones" which is used twice on page 208?  

Answer:   Page 208 does not exist.  Zones refer to CONUS and OCONUS sites.

42.  Section L-4:  Page 208 states that we should provide prices for all CLINs.  Yet under section (a) we are only to provide T&M prices.  The T&M prices are not appropriate for "all CLINs".  Would the NAVAIR please explain what it wants?

Answer:   Page 208 does not exist.  For evaluation purposes, all offerors are required to propose Time and Material ceiling rates for each proposed labor category.  The Government requires that all offerors submit required information under Volume III, L-4 in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors proposed prices.  Offerors are instructed not to insert proposed amounts in any CLINs specified in Section B.  Failure to submit pricing for the fully burdened fixed hourly rates, as required, may result in an offeror being ineligible for contract award.  

43.  Section L-4:  Page 208 states that we should provide prices from the "most recent fully completed accounting year".  We intended to provide prices for the three contract periods based on provisional direct and indirect rates, which will be different in some respects from the completed year.  Could the NAVAIR advise us which approach it wants us to take?

Answer:   Page 208 does not exist.  Offerors are to propose labor rates from the most recent fully completed accounting year.  

44.  Section L-4:  Page 208 states that prices should be based on the "highest (direct cost) labor category within the team".  The next paragraph says that the rate must be "from the prime or any other team member".

However, the Attachment 1 table shows that the desired rates are average composites, similar to those requested under paragraph (a) on page 208.

There is a great difference between using the highest rate of any member of the team, and using an average of the team.  Which does the NAVAIR require?

Answer:   Page 208 does not exist. The solicitation states that rates may be based on the prime contractor, a subcontractor or a composite rate representing the overall contract team.  Attachment (1) segregates the Prime and subcontractor Fully Burdened Hourly Rates. Offerors are to complete Attachment (1) “Fully Burdened Rate Table”.  Potential offerors must determine how to develop a ceiling rate representative of the whole team.  An offeror may elect to develop a composite rate that is representative of the entire team.
45.  Section L-4 page 211:  The first paragraph refers to "Table 1". Does this mean Attachment 1, or Table B-1 (1)(a), or possibly the B-Tables?

Please clarify.

Answer:  Table I is referring to Table B-1(1)(a).

46.  Section L-4 page 211:  The second paragraph states that "the offeror shall provide .... material costs".  What material costs should we provide, and how does the NAVAIR want us to estimate those costs?

Answer:   Offerors are instructed not to proposed any anticipated material costs associated with completing the Statement of Work.  Offerors are instructed to leave this section blank.  Anticipated material and associated costs will be defined at the task order level.
47.
Section M page 222:  Under the first paragraph of the PRICE section, the RFP states that the "cost will be evaluated on the Maximum Contract Labor Cost proposed".  How would the Government compute that value, based on the T&M rates we provide in Section L?

Answer:  Although Firm Fixed Price task orders are the preferred pricing arrangement, all offerors are to propose Time and Material rates for evaluation purposes, and for the establishment of T&M ceiling rates for the issuance of T&M task orders.  The estimated contract value is $977.5M, which will be reflected in the Multiple Award Contracts resulting from the issuance of Solicitation N00421-04-R-0086.
48.  Attachment 1:   This table computes the weighted averages using hours specified in the RFP.  The DoD IG RFP does not specify hours.  Would it be acceptable if we use percentages of planned effort instead of hours?

Answer:  The hours included in Attachment (1) are only samples to demonstrate how the offeror could compute Fully Burdened Hourly rates.  Offerors may use hours or percentage of hours to develop representative composite rates.

49.  Please indicate if there is a two-page intro for resumes.

Answer:  No.  There is no two-page introduction for resumes.   As previously indicated, there are two pages allowed per resume.

50.  Can you tell me or is there a place I can look to get entire list of the nine areas ready for assessment task order under the MAC?

Answer:  The Government does not have a list of organized task orders for auditability assessments.

51.  May we submit a spreadsheet that shows our Indirect Labor costs, Other indirect costs, Direct Labor cost, and Profit only to satisfy the requirement of the Fully Burdened Labor rate required by L-4 (a)?

Answer: Offerors must propose one fully burdened fixed hourly rate per labor category in the format set forth in the Fully Burdened Fixed Labor Rate Table, Attachment (1) “Hourly Rate Table”.   

52.  It is unclear, as a Prime Contractor, whether we are to get our three (3) references to complete the Questionnaire and send it back to us to then include in our proposal, and also have them fax it or email it directly to you.  Are we/can we only have the Federal Agency send it directly to you and not back to us to include in our proposal?  

Answer:  See response to Question #31.  

53.  On Page 163 section c (2), it requires three (3) performance references for the prime offeror.

Question: Are we required to submit 3 references per task or 3 references for both tasks?

Answer:  Prime Offerors are not required to submit three (3) references on a per task basis.  Prime Offeror are instructed to submit three (3) references total.  

54.  In preparing our response to Solicitation N00421-04-R-0086 DoD IG Information Assurance and Audit, I need to complete Standard Form 33.  In viewing the RFP this form is in a picture format and can not be edited.  Can you provide this form in Word format so we can insert our information or should I find a blank form and enter all the information, both DoD and our company info?

Answer: The Standard Form 33 is protected on the NAVAIR website.  You may either use a typewriter when completing or you may download the form from http://www.gsa.gov/Portal/gsa/ep/formslibrary.do?formType=SF and re-type all of the information in the SF33.

55.  The location for proposal submission was not found in the solicitation.

Answer:  Please submit proposals to Naval Air Systems Command, Aircraft Division, Building 441, 21983 Bundy Road, Patuxent River, MD  20670, Attn:  Adrienne Somerville, by 2:00pm on 30 September 2004.

56.  In regard to Attachment 4, part D (#2-4), please explain what is needed and how we get this information.  Are we to list people we have worked with at these offices?  If so, what would we put if we have not worked with these agencies?

Answer:  Part D, numbers 2-4 of Attachment 4 are the cognizant Defense Contract Management Office, Defense Contract Audit Agency and Defense Finance Accounting Service and corresponding points of contacts are required when participating in a government procurement.  You may obtain this information at http://pubapp.dcma.mil/CASD/main.jsp.

 

57.  We have been informed that emails going to the haydenkk@navair.navy.mil account have been bounced for past performance questionnaires for the DoD OIG solicitation.  Should we have them sent to this account?
 

Answer:  The correct email address for Mrs. Krista Hayden is krista.hayden@navy.mil

58.  RFP page 163 details the information to be included in the Past Performance section.  Is a general narrative allowed in addition to attachments 5 and 6 and the 2-page narrative on subcontractor contribution?  If so, is there a page limit for the general narrative. 
Answer:  No.  The is no general narrative allowed in addition to Attachments ( 5), (6), and the 2-page narrative on subcontractor contributions.  Offerors are instructed to adhere to Section L of the Solicitation, which affords Offerors an opportunity to provide information about their performance during the past three (3) years on the Matrix, Attachment (5).

The supportive narrative page limit that describes the role, if any, that subcontractors have played in contributing toward your success and/or failures in regards to Past Performance is hereby revised.  The supportive narrative for all previous experience shall not exceed one page for each subcontractor on a team.

59.  The proposal is to be delivered to the Naval Air Warfare Center in Pax River.  Does the address on the RFP accept overnight mail?  If we want to hand deliver a back-up copy, are there special arrangements for entering the Center to make the delivery?

Answer:  Please submit proposals to Naval Air Systems Command Aircraft Division, Building 441, 21983 Bundy Road, Patuxent River, MD  20670, Attn:  Adrienne Somerville, by 2:00pm on 30 September 2004.

Overnight mail is accepted at this address.  A hand-delivered copy can be delivered to the same address.  We are located on a Naval Base; therefore, coordination will have to be made with the local Pass Office for access to the facility. 

60.  "In L-3.c(2), and in answers to pre-solicitation questions 16 and 26, you indicate that the "offeror should submit the "original" Past Performance Questionnaire with the proposal in Volume II".  We assume this means we would be submitting an uncompleted copy of the PPQ prescribed in the RFP that was sent to each client, and not the completed version that the client will fax to the contracting office.  Is this assumption correct?  Or is one blank copy of the PPQ prescribed in the RFP sufficient?"
Answer:  Once the original Past Performance Questionnaire has been completed by the reference, it should be forwarded directly to Ms. Krista Hayden, either from the reference or from the contractor.    Please do not submit a blank questionnaire in Volume II.  

61.  For firms that are bidding under Task 1 and Task 2, it is unclear if the limit on the number of qualifications that can be submitted are 3 each (a total of six) or 3 total.

 

Answer:  See response to Question #54.

62.  Re the DOD solicitation referenced above, we are an 8(a) firm that has never had any DOD contracts or awards.  As such, we do not have POCs for the three agencies (DCM, DCAA, DFAS) required to be listed in Attachment 4, pages 3 & 4.  The same situation applies to one of our subcontractors.

Please advise us how we are to complete pages 3 & 4 in order to be responsive to this portion of the solicitation.

Answer:  See response to question #56.

63.  In Section L of the RFP there is no mention as to where delivery of the proposal should be sent. 
Can you please confirm the delivery address and point person for receipt of proposals? 

Answer:  See response to question #55.

B.  The closing date of this solicitation remains unchanged as 2:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time, Thursday, 30 September 2004.

(End of Summary of Changes) 

